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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

In 1§91 the Women's Library Association of Helena, Arkansas, constructed
a two-and-one-half storey building to house their library. Almost forty
years later a one-and-one-half-storey museum was added to the original
library building. The combined structures are known as the Helena
Library and Museum. :

The library is a two-storey brick building with a mansard roof. Paired
gable dormers project from the roof on all four elevations. On the side
and rear elevations the double-hung sash windows have segmental heads
and cast-stone lugsills. Around the entire building the wall surface

is broken with coursing at the second-storey line.

The facade of the library is divided into three bays by brick pilasters.
Paired windows set in segmental-arch frames flank the one-storey enclosed
entry porch. An unusual decorated entablature surmounts the second-storey
windows on the facade. The cornice features molded woodwork with decorative
brackets above brick coursing.

The museum building adjoins the southwest corner of the library and is
architecturally harmonious with the library building. Like the library,
the facade of the museum is divided into three bays by brick pilasters
and has a segmental-arch entry flanked by paired, segmental-arch windows.
The museum has a truncated hip roof extending over the brick cornice.

Several additions have been made to the rear of the Helena Library. and

Museum. In the 1960's two one-storey, flat-roofed additions were made

to the rear (west) elevation of the library. A one-storey, gable-roofed
extension was added to the museum in 1974. The only alteration to the library's
facade occurred about 1914 when the entry was moved from the north front

window to the center bay.

The interior of the library building has molded trim with corner blocks
around doors and windows. In the northeast corner of the building an
elegant stairway with slender turned balusters rises to the second
storey. The interior of the museum consists of one large open room
completely surrounded by a railed balcony. Museum displays are located
around both the ground floor and the balcony. Interior woodwork in the
museum is harmonious with that in the library.

This architecturally interesting structure, which is somewhat reminiscent

around the doors and windows. Resting on its original site near the
downtown area, the Helena Library and Museum remains in excellent condition.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

As the oldest<publlqwgulld1ng in Helena, Arkansas, the Phillips County
Library and Museum is an 1mportant local landmark. During the two
decades following its 1891 construction the building functioned as the

civic center of Helena. Its continual use as a library and museum has

made it the most historically important educational building still standing in

Phillips County.

In the 1870's Helena's first library originated with the Rescue Hook
and Ladder Company. This volunteer-firemen's group had a small lending
library for several years. 1In 1878 another group of men established the
Helena Library Association. Ten years later the Women's Library Assoc-
iation was organized and chartered, and the Helena Library Association
soon disbanded. The 533 books owned by the men's library were donated
to the new women's library.

Construction of a permghant library building was important to the Women's
Library Association. 1In 1889, only a year after the group was organized,
a site was acquired on which to build a library. By 1891 enough money
had been raised to finance construction of a $6,000.00 building. Helena
contractors Raenhart and Simon were in charge of construction.

From 1889 until the 1920's, when public support first became available,
almost every kind of money raising event imaginable was held to benefit
the Helena Library. From the sale of local bonds and figurative bricks
to the holding of benefit concerts, bazaars and dances, the Helena

community was continually involved in raising money to support the library.

Probably the most unusual fund-raising event ocurred when the main hall
of the library building was used as a skating rink.

As Helena's civic center around the turn of the century, the library was
used for frequent dances, receptions and women's club meetings. Religious
services and school classes were held there occasionally. It was not
unitl 1914 that the main room of the building was devoted exclusively to
library purposes.

Beginning in 1889, with the donation of a carved wooden inkwell, many
museum items were donated to the Helena Library. Through the years more
and more artifacts were presented to the library, and with each new gift
the need for a museum building grew. After a number of years of fund
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raising similar to that which financed the library, a museum wing
was added to the Helena Library in 1929.

The Helena Museum is one of the most important local museums in
Arkansas. Displays include Indian artifacts, personal effects of
several individuals prominent in Helena's history, Civil War relics,
early documents relating to Phillips County history and many other
items. In addition, both the museum and library contain a great
deal of archival material concerned with Helena's past.

Architecturally, the Helena Library and Museum is unusual in 2
eastern Arkansas because of its mansard roof. In this community
of Greek Revival and Victorian residences, the French mansard library
is a distinctive change of pace. For many years the building has

been painted a vibrant pink, a color in contrast to the quiet use of
the structure.

The Helena Library and Museum has a great deal of local historic
significance as the oldest public building in the community, as an early
civic center,andas the repository for a great number of articles and
information concerned with Phillips County history. Its architectural

style, unusual in this area, adds further to the signficance of the
building.
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